
 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Meeting 

October 11, 2016 

 

Present:  Myles Mickle, Colin James, Stefan Golec, Evelyn Weeks, Steve Adams 

 

Also Present:  Willis D. Stearns, II, Municipal Manager; Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk; Police 

Chief/Fire Chief Ron Lake; Deborah Wright; Ann DiBernardo; Lamont Barnett; Peter Golec 

 

Press:  KMO, FACT8; Joel Slutsky, The Shopper; Tory Jones Bonenfant, Eagle Times  

 

Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by President Myles Mickle. 

  

Additions to the Agenda for Routine Administrative Matters and/or Pressing Matters that will 

require ratification at a future meeting:  None 

 

Approve Minutes of September 13, 2016: Colin James made the motion to approve the minutes 

of  September 13, 2016 as printed.  Motion was seconded by Evelyn Weeks.  Motion passed. 

 

Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: (3 minutes per person):  

 Deborah Wright noted that the Village infrastructure is falling apart and the Trustees should 

be having a serious discussion with the Selectboard regarding this issue noting specifically 

the issues now surrounding the Bridge Street Bridge, 

 Ann DiBernardo noted that 4 of the 5 Selectboard members recently decided to cut the 

budget and this will likely result in no infrastructure being addressed. 

 

Manager’s Report: 

 Parking ban in the Town of Rockingham including the Villages of Bellows Falls and Saxtons 

River will be effective starting November 1 through April 1.  In addition, there is no parking 

on the streets during and 24 hours after a snow storm.  Vehicles will be towed at owner’s 

expense. 

 Leaf & yard debris pick up is occurring now through the end of November on Mondays & 

Fridays only weather permitting by the Rockingham Highway Department.  Leaves & debris 

must be placed in clear bags and be able to be handled by one highway worker.  Leaves & 

yard debris can also be taken to the Recycling Center. 

 The Water Department is currently flushing hydrants Monday through Friday from 9:00 am 

to 3:00 pm until October 21. 

 

Agenda: 

1. Police Department: 

a) Ordinance Enforcement – Lawn Mowing:  Chief Lake was present and reported that over 

the summer months 20 letters were sent to property owners, all were answered and all 

lawns addressed were mowed and it was not necessary to hire an outside contractor.  

Lake did note that he had missed the 17 Henry Street property until early September but a 

letter was sent and this was resolved by the end of September.  Weeks noted that it 

seemed that this ordinance and the process is effective.  Lake stated that it “gets the job 

done” and since 2009 there has only been on property that required an outside contractor.  

A lien was placed on that property and the funds were recouped. 
  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

October 11, 2016 – Page 2 

 

2. Fire Department: 

a) Alstead Request for Paramedic:  Administrative Fire Chief Ron Lake reported that he is 

still doing research on this and is not ready to report on this item at this time.  James 

stated that it is his opinion that the paramedic we have is a valuable asset to the Village 

and that he would not be in favor of allowing the paramedic to go to Alstead.   Lake 

stated that James did have a point and also noted that once the paramedic puts their hands 

on a patient they own that patient until released by a hospital so this could mean a 

significant amount of time that the paramedic would be out of the Village.  Weeks stated 

that she felt the same and the paramedic should remain in the Village.  Adams noted that 

he also had reservations and agreed that this resource should remain in the Village.  

Golec as well stated that the paramedic should be available to our community.  Stearns 

stated that the consensus of the board was to not consider this request and will cease 

research.  Chief Lake stated that he will inform Alstead of this decision. 

 

3. Updates: 

a) Water Project:  Stearns noted that the Route 5 North project was originally scheduled to 

be completed by November 28.  However, this project will go into winter shutdown and 

resume in the spring.  Stearns also reported that VTrans is planning to do mill & fill on 

Route 5 starting at Pond Road in the spring.  Stearns is hoping to have a discussion with 

them and that they will agree to start at Missing Link Road and come back once the 

Water Project is complete.  Stearns also stated that the Hadley/Chase/Oak project will be 

going out to bid soon and is slated to start in the spring.  This will be a combined 

water/wastewater project.  In addition, Burt Street from Atkinson Street to Blake Street is 

still in the design stage and is also a spring project.  

 

b) Wastewater Project:  Stearns reported that Penta Corporation will be continuing to work 

through the winter on the interior portions of the project.  Stearns noted that the project is 

slightly behind schedule and they are hoping by working through the winter the project 

will catch up.  Stearns also reported that all generators are being replaced and all will be 

propane.  Adams asked what the plan was for the old generators and if they could be sold. 

 Stearns stated that unfortunately these do not meet current code but may be able to be 

sold for parts or to be shipped out of the country.  Mickle stated that he had been reading 

the Fixed Asset Policy and would like to discuss this at a future meeting.  Stearns stated 

that this is a joint policy and will put it on the Joint Board Agenda for the 11/29 meeting. 

 

4. Finance Office: 

 a) FY2017 Budget Status:  Stearns noted that we are 25% through the fiscal year and 

everything, with the exception of those items paid once or twice a year, was on budget.  

Stearns noted that the Police Department part-time/overtime budgets were at 41% and 

this will be discussed in executive session.  Weeks noted that the auditor line item was at 

130%.  Stearns stated that some of these costs need to be reclassified to Water & 

Wastewater.  Weeks also noted that FACTV was at 150%.  Stearns stated that an invoice 

was received for $1,500 and the budget number was $1,000.  Stearns noted that this is 

likely due to the fact that the Trustees were meeting only once a month when the budget 

was done and are now back to twice a month requiring more broadcasts.   

 

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

October 11, 2016 – Page 3 

 

Overtime & Comp Time Reports:  No comments. 

 

Review Fire Dept. & Police Dept. Call Logs:  Stearns noted that the Fire Department call log 

was included in the Board packets and the Police Department call log was distributed this 

evening.  Stearns also noted that the Annual Firemen’s Parade will be held this Sunday, October 

16 at 1:00 p.m. 

 

Review Task List:   

 Unsafe Buildings:  Weeks noted that she had spoken with Steve Fortier, Executive Director 

of the YMCA, about the YMCA building on Atkinson Street and was told that there would 

be some action on that building. 

 Website:  Stearns stated that he has been in discussion with a department head about making 

the website more navigation friendly for those not familiar with municipal government. 

 

Review Agenda Items for Next Regular Trustees Meeting – October 25, 2016:  

Police Department staffing 

 

Review Agenda Items for Joint Board Meeting – November 29, 2016: 

 Sidewalks/infrastructure 

 Fixed Asset Policy 

 Parking Permit Policy 

 FACTV (Request of Alex Stradling) 

 

Approve Orders, Bills & Warrants:  Colin James made the motion to approve the orders, bills 

and warrants as printed.  Motion was seconded by Steve Adams.  Motion passed. 

 

Other Business:  None 

 

Executive Session – Labor relations agreements with employees:  Stefan Golec made the motion 

to find that premature general public knowledge of labor relations agreements with employees 

will clearly place the municipality at a substantial disadvantage by disclosing contractual union 

contract items.  Motion was seconded by Steve Adams.  Motion passed. 

 

Stefan Golec made the motion that the Bellows Falls Trustees enter executive session at 7:12 

p.m. to discuss the labor relations agreements with employees, under provisions of Title 1, 

Section 313(a)(1) of the Vermont Statutes and invite the Municipal Manager, the Police Chief 

and the Human Resource Coordinator to attend.  Motion was seconded by Colin James.  Motion 

passed. 

 

The Board came out of executive session at 7:36 p.m.  No announcements were made. 

 

Adjourn:  Myles Mickle made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:36 p.m.  Motion was 

seconded by Stefan Golec.  Motion passed. 

 

 

       Attest:         

        Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk 


